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,dent such as dissolution, assignment or sale. resultmg in the emergence
-of a successor corporatmn, the creation or dissolution of subsidiaries,
or any .other change in the corporation. Whlch may a,ﬂ’ect comphance
‘obhga,tlons arising out of the order.

At is further. ordefred That respondents herem shall w1th1n smty
(60) days after service upon them of this order, file with the Com-
mission a report in writing, setting forth in detail the manner a,nd
form in Wluch they have complied with this order. '

o ‘ N THE,;Mf;mR,;oF,‘ o
_ FABBIS, INC,, ET AL., por~e susivess s ROCHESTER
'PLUMBING AND HEATING CONTRACTQRS
ORDER, OPINION, ETc., IN REGA}iD TO'THE ALLEGED VIOLATrON OF THE
 FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ‘AND THE TRUTH IN LENDING ‘ACTS

Docket 8833 Oomplamt Jan. 18; 1971—Demswn Oct 30, 19‘72

Order requiring a Roches*ter, New York ﬁrm engaged in the sale of plumbing
and heating equipment ‘and instaliation services to the public, among other
things to cease violating the Truth in Lending Act by failing to provide
each customer with a notice of the right to rescind prior to consummation
of the transaction; making any physical changes in customer’s property or

performing any work on such property before expiration of the rescission
period; and failing to make any other necessary dlsclosures as required by
.Regulatlon Z of the said Act. .

. CoMPLAINT

Pursuant to the provisions of the Truth in Lending Act and the
implementing regulation promulgated thereunder, and the Federal
Trade Commission Act, and by virtue of the authority vested in it by
said Acts, the Federal Trade Commission, having reason to believe
that Fabbis, Inc., a corporation, doing business as Rochester Plumb-
ing and Heating Contractors, and Richard J. Fabrizi and James J.
Rebis, individually and as officers of said corporation, hereinafter
referred to as respondents, have violated the provisions of said Acts
and reoula;tlon, and it appearing to the Commission that a proceedmg
by it in respect thereof would be in the public interest, hereby i issues
its complaint stating its charges in that respect as follows T

Paragraru 1. Respondent Fabbis, Inc., is a corporation organized
existing and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the
State of New York, with its principal office and place of business
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located at 123 Barberry Terrace, Rochester, New York. It.is doing
business under the name of Rochester Plumblng and Hea.tmg Con--
tractors.

Respondents Richard J.. Fabrlz1 and James J. Rebls are. oﬂicers of
said corporation. They formulate, direct and control the policies, acts
and - practices of said corporation, including the acts and practices
hereinafter set forth. Their address is the same as that of the dorporate
respondent. _

Par. 2. Respondents are now, and for some time- last past ha,ve been,
engaged in the sale of plumbing and heating equipment- and installa-
tion services to the public.

Par. 3. In the ordinary course and conduct of thelr business as
aforesaid, respondents arrange, and for some time last past regularly
have arranged, for the extension of consumer credit, as “consumer
credit” is deﬁned in Regulation Z, the implementing regulation of the
Truth in Lending Act, duly promulgated by the Board of Governors
of the Federal Reserve System.

Par. 4. Subsequent to July 1, 1969, respondents in the ordmary course
and conduct of their busmess and in connection with their arranging
for consumer credit, have caused, and are causing, customers to execute
retail installment contracts, herein referred to as “the contract,” which
results or may result in a security interest being retained or acquired
in real property which is used or is expected to be used as the principal
residence of the customer. The customers thereby have the right to
rescind such transactions, as provided in Section 226.9(a) of Regula-
tion Z.

Par. 5. In connection with the consumer credit transactions set forth
in Paragraphs Three and Four hereof, respondents prepare documents
containing consumer credit cost disclosures required by ‘Section 226.8
of Regulation Z and obtain from customers written acknowledgment
of receipt of these disclosures, but in some instances nevertheless fail
to provide the customer with a copy of such disclosures, as required
by Section 226.8 (a) of Regulation Z.

Par. 6. In connection with the consumer credit transactions set forth
in Paragraphs Three and Four hereof, respondents complete notices
of the right of rescission in the form required by Section 226.9(b) of
Regulation Z and obtain from customers written acknowledgment of
receipt of these notices, but in some instances nevertheless fa,ll to pro-
vide each customer who has the right to rescind the transaction with
two copies of such notices, as required by Sections 226.9(b) and (f)
of Regulation Z. In many such instances, respondents fail to provide
the customer with any copies of the required notice.
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Par. 7. Having entered into the consumer credit transactions set
forth in Paragraphs Three and Four hereof, respondents in some in-
stances fail to delay making any physical changes in the property of
the customer and fail to delay performmg any work or service for the
customer until the three day rescission period provided for in Section .
226.9(a) of Regulation Z has expired, in violation of Section 226.9(c)
of Regulation Z. :

Par. 8. Pursuant to Section 103 (k) of the Truth in Lending Act, re-
spondents’ aforesaid failures to comply with the requirements of Reg-
ulation Z constitute violations of that Act and, pursuant to Section
108 thereof, respondents thereby have violated the Federal Trade OOm-
mission Act ,

M. Ja/mes M Katz and M. M yer S Tulkoﬁ" supportmg t,ho com-
'plamt. '

- M. Peércival D. vatt Jr and Mr /S’afmuel P. Merlo, of Woods,
O'z;mtt Gelman,. Sturman & OZa'/'Ice, Rochester, New York for Te-
spondents .
: INIT.IAL D.ECISION BY WALTER K BENNE’I’I‘, HEARING EXAMINER

' -~ JUNE 16, 1971 B ’

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Respondents, a corporation, and two individual officers, are charged
with violating the Truth in Lending Act (15 U.S.C. 1601), as imple-
mented by Federal Reserve Regulation Z (12 C.F.R. § 226). The com-
plaint was issued on January 18, 1971, against Fabbis, Inc., doing
business as Rochester Plumbing and Heating Contractors and its of-
ficers, Richard J. Fabrizi and James J. Rebls, individually and as
officers of the corporation.

It charged that:

1. Respondents regularly arrange for the extension of consumer
credit to their customers, and have failed to provide them with a du-
plicate copy of consumer credit cost disclosures, to retain, as required
by Section 226.8(a) of Regulation Z.

‘9. In rescindable transactions, respondents have failed to provide
their customers with requisite copies of notices of the right of rescis-

sion, as required by Section 226.9 (b) of Regulation Z.

- 8. Inrescindable transactions, respondents have failed to delay dur-
ing the three day rescission period, making any physical changes in
the customers’ property, commencement of the work or deliveries to
customers’ residences for the duration of the rescission period, in
violation of Section 226.9 (¢) of Regulation Z.
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Respondents’ Answer admitted thie following facts: :

1. Respondent Fabbis, Inc., is a corporation organized, existing
and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the State of
New York, with its principal office and place of business located at
123 Barberry Terrace, Rochester, New York. It is doing business
under the name of Rochester Plumbing and Heating Contractors.

9. Respondents Richard J. Fabrizi and James J. Rebis are officers
of said corporation. Their address is the same as that of the corporate
respondent. Respondents are now, and for some time last past have.
been, engaged in the sale of plumbing and heatmg equipment and in-

“stallation services to the public.

3. As a part of their'business, in the ordinary course and conduct
‘of their business as aforesaid, respondents arrange, and for some time
last past regularly have a,rranged for the extension of consumer
credit, as “consumer credit” is defined in Regulation Z, the imple-
menting regulation of the Truth in Lending Act, duly promulgated
by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System.

Respondents® Answer either flatly denied, or denied knowledge of,
all of the other allegations in the complaint. = '

A prehearing conference was held in Washington, D.C., on March 2,
1971. Evidentiary hearings were held in Rochester, New York com-
mencing on March 18, 1971, and were concluded on March 22, 1971.

The following abbreviations will sometimes be used herein making
references to the record: Transcript—Tr.; Commission Exhibits—
CX; Respondents’ Exhibits—RX ; Complaint Counsels’ proposed find-
ings of fact—CPF;? Respondents proposed findings of fact—RPF;
Complaint—C; Answer——A

On the basis of the entire record 2 the hearing examiner makes the
following findings, conclusions and order. All proposed findings not
found expressly or in substance are denied as erroneous, irrelevant or
immaterial.

1. Respondent Fabbis, Inc., is a corporation organized, existing
and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the State of
New York, with its principal office and place of business located at
123 Barberry Terrace, Rochester, New York. It is doing business under

1 References to proposed findings of the parties Include the citation of authority or
reasons submitted therewith on the accuracy of which the hearing examiner has relied
in light of the requirements of the ninety (90) day rule.

21In accordance with the Commission rules reference is made to the principal supporting
items of evidence. The citation of particular references in no way indicates that the entire
record has not been considered. The findings are based on the record as a whole and not
only on the citations to the exhibits or transcript pages specifically noted.

494-841—73——44



- 682 - FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION. DEGISIONS-...
Initial Decision 81 F.T C

the mname of Rochester Plumbmg ‘and Heatmg Contractors (Tr 44;
CyAL).

2 Respondents are. now, and for some tlme last past have been
-.engaged in the sale of plumbing and heating equipment and installa-
tion services. to.the public (Tr 44; C., A.). There was no proof that
respondents-have engaged in mterstate .commerce . (Tr.. 98-101, 4:11
493-495).

8. In the ordinary course and conduct of thelr busmess as afore-
sald respondent corporation under. the direction and control of. the
individ‘ual respondents. has arranged and for some time last past,
regularly has arranged, for the extension of consumer credit, as “con-
sumer credit” is defined in Regulation Z; the implementing regulation
of: the Truth in Lending Act; duly promulgated by the Board of
Governors of .the Federal Reserve System (C., A.; Tr. 85—88 95, 443~
444, 528). .

- A number of customer w1tnesses testlﬁed expressly that respondent .
. corporatlon arranged for the extension of consumer credit to them:
(Tr. 61-62; Tr. 110; Tr. 137). Commission Exhibits 25A-59G (Tr.
390) are the bank records in evidence of thirty:six additional instances
in which respondent corporation arranged credit for customers. ,

‘4. Subsequent to July. 1, 1969, respondent .corporation in the ordi-
nary course and conduct of its business and in connection with arrang-
ing for consumer credit, has caused, and is causing, customers to exe-
cute retail installment contracts to finance home improvements on real
property that is used as the principal residence of the customer.

A number of customer witnesses testified that respondent corpora-
tion performed work on a structure which was used as a home and that
was the principal residence of the witness and his or her spouse (Tr.
56-57; 1056-106; 132; 166; 182; 236-237; 253 ; 268-264 ; 280 315; 335—
336 357).

5. Respondent corporation employed wor Lmen to install the plumb- '
ing and heatlng equipment it sold to its customers (Tr. 80).

6. No waivers of workmen’s liens were presented at the hearing
(CPF 6), however, the corporate respondent specifically waived any
security interest or right of lien in connection with each transaction.
(RPF 5).

7. In consumer credit transactions respondents have failed to render
consumer credit cost disclosures to thelr oustomers prior to consumma-
tion of their transactions.

A number of customer witnesses who testlﬁed at the hearing 1nd1-
cated that he or she discussed the method of payment with respond-
ents’ salesman before or at the time the sales agreement was executed
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and that it was understood that respondents would arrange for the
extension of credit to.them (Tr. 61; 110; 137; 173; 189-190; 212-213;
24925 256-257; 282-283 ; 317; 340—342 361—362) ,

Mr Apo's’oa,lou, one of rbhe respondents salesmen, testified rthemt the
first thing discussed with a customer who indicated an intent to make
a purchase was the method by which payment would be made (Tr.
478-47 9) Mr. Rease testified that the company wants to know that
it is going to be paid so that the method of payment is discussed with
‘the customer (Tr. 432, 440).

" Mr. Apostalou. testlﬁed that he would contact Mr. Rease after a
contract was signed in order to have him come out to a customer’s
home and seek execution of the bank papers (Tr. 478).

Mr. Rease’s testimony indicated that by the time he arrived at the
‘home of a customer, to arrange for the extension of consumer credit,
the sales contract would already be signed. (Tr. 432)

Thus, the consumer witnesses would not receive the consumer c;t'edlt
cost, dlsclosures prior to execution of the sales proposal or of the retail
installment contract. (Tr. 62; 108-112; 116; 135-137; 168-169; 186-
189; 212-214 ; 241243 ; 258; 282—284 17—318 357—361)

8. In connection wib’h consumer credit trans’actions respondents ob-
tained from customers written acknowledgment of receipt of docu-
ments containing spaces for consumer credit cost disclosures, but in
_some Instances, nevertheless, failed to provide customers with a com-

pleted copy of such disclosures.

Customer witnesses presented by counsel supporting the complaint
testified that respondents failed to provide them with a fully completed
retainable copy of consumer credit cost disclosures. The documents in
evidence, nevertheless, reveal that each customer signed an acknowl-
edgment of receipt of the disclosures. (Tr. 116-117, CX 10-A ; Tr. 137,
CX 12-A; Tr. 169, CX 8-B; Tr. 187-189, CX 11-A; Tr. 214216, CX
14-B; Tr. 241, CX 9-C; Tr. 258-260, CX 17-C; Tr. 285-286, 288 CX
21-B; Tr. 823, CX 15-B; Tr. 345-346, CX 24-A ; Tr. 360, CX 13-B).

9. In connection with consumer credit transactions, respondents
obtained from customers written acknowledgment of receipt of notices
of rlght of rescission, but failed, in fact, to provide each such customer
who it is claimed had the right to rescind with any copies of such
notices.

Customer witnesses testified that they did not receive a copy of these
notices of right of rescission to retain. However, the documents reveal
that receipt thereof was acknowledged (e.g. Tr. 170; 116-117; CX
10-C, 10-D; Tr. 137, 148, CX 12-C, D; Tr. 216; Tr. 258, CX 17-C,
D; Tr. 288; Tr. 323, CX 15-D, E; Tr. 345-346, CX 24-C, D; Tr. 860,
CX 13-D, E).
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10. Having entered into credit transactions with their customers,
respondents failed to delay making any physical changes in their cus-
tomers’ property, performing any work or making any deliveries to
the residences of such customers, for the duration of a three-day period.
A number of customer witnesses testified that the respondents com-
menced performance of the work during the first three days after

' the contract was signed (Tr. 62, 67; 111; 138-139; 172; 189; 217; 245;

2623 291; 317; 348; 362).

11. In such credit transactions, respondents did not obtain valid
waivers of the right of rescission from such customers. A number of
customer witnesses testified that there was no emergency situation
requiring that the work upen their homes be performed before expira-
tion of the three-day period (Tr.117;172;208). .

- Althiough respondents’ counsel elicited testimony from several of

Commission witnesses indicating that they believed they had executed
waivers of their right of rescission (Tr. 171; 204-205) the witnesses
testified that there was nesbona fide emergency situation requiring
immediate performance of the work (Tr.172;190). - -
A witness from one of the banking institutions testified that he had
examined the records of transactions arranged with his bank by re-

‘spondents during the period of July 1, 1969, through December 30,

1969, and was unable to find any waivers of the right of rescission in
the bank files for the period of July 1, 1969, through December 1969
(Tr. 387). George Rease, respondents’ general manager, testified on
cross-examination that, during the period covered by the Commission’s
investigation no valid waivers of the right of rescission were obtained
(Tr. 446-447). Respondent Rebis confirmed that some waivers that
had been obtained were deemed inadequate by counsel and were thrown

-away upon counsel’s advice (Tr. 540-541).

12. Shortly before the hearings in this matter were scheduled, re-
spondents’ attorneys were supplied with a list of complaint counsel’s

. prospective witnesses. Thereafter, Mr. Rebis, one of the individual re-

spondents, contacted a number of prospective witnesses and sought to
obtain handwritten statements (Tr. 537-539). Mr. Larmon, the re-
spondents’ customer relations man, accompanied Mr. Rebis to the
homes of the prospective Federal Trade Commission witnesses. He
made notes, then asked that witness copy, in his or her own hand-
writing, a statement embodying what was contained in the notes (Tr.
495-506).

- A number of the Commission’s witnesses testified that they executed
such statements for respondents. However, each one also testified
under oath, contrary to the written statement, at the hearing and in-
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dicated that the contradictory written statements were in error. (Tr.
141; 146-148; 202203 ; 231-232; 306-308; CPF 12). '

13 During the hea,rmg, respondents also produced certain questlon-
naires signed by customer witnesses, entitled “Help Us Maintain Good
Business,” and offered them into evidence to contradict the sworn testi-
mony of these witnesses. Because of the manner in: which these docu-
ments were procured and because of the concealinent of their true pur-
pose by respondents employees, the hearing examiner accepts the sworn .
statements given at.the hearing. :

The questionnaire was prepared as a result of the Comm1ss1on’s in-
vestigation (Tr. 532-538). Examination of these questionnaire forms.
" reveals that part of Question 2 relate to allegations of violations which
were subsequently brought against the company by the Commlssmn
(RX7,9,11,18,15,16).

Representa,tlves of the. respondents called upon: every credlt cus-
tomer with whom the.company dealt during the period covered by the
investigation (Tr. 550) and; in some instances, the salesman who sold
the equipment to the customers 1nterv1ewed was the saine person Who :
came with the questionnaire (Tr. 552). .

The method by which these questlonnalres were oompleted Was con-
fusmg and lent itself to erroneous answers being obtained. The com-
pany’s representative read each question orally to the respective signer
(Tr. 468) and marked or checked off the answers himself (Tr. 467).
Although Question 2 of the questionnaire referred to the respective
customer’s receipt or non-receipt of certain documents; the questioner
did not have any samples of those documents available for the cus-
tomer’s examination (Tr. 488). The company’s representative asked
to see the documents that the customers had in their possession; some
had them and others did not (Tr. 488). The customers were not in-
formed as to the true purpose of the questionnaire. Although, one of
the salesmen who went around with the questionnaires explained that
they were merely designed to see if the company’s customers received
required papers and knew their rights (Tr. 482). Mr. Larmon, the cus-
tomer relations man of the company, testified that he himself did not
know the true purpose of the questionnaire (Tr. 505-508). Mr. Kramer,
another company salesman, testified that it was merely to help the
company maintain good business (Tr. 476).

Mrs. Szczepanski, one of the customer witnesses, testified that she
believed the questionnaire which she executed (RX 4) was a public
relations device (Tr. 178). She also stated that she was not told the
significance of the document or the reason for its execution (Tr. 179).

Mrs. Simon testified that she did not pay much attention to the -
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questionnaire before sxgnmg (Tr 199) She dld not even look a,t 1t'
(Tr. 200). ~ :
Mrs. Grodner testlﬁed that she only signed the questlonnalre because
the company’s representative, who ‘came with it promised that she’
would thereafter be furnished w1th copies of everythlng which she had
signed at the time the transaction was entered into (Tr. 250).
Mr. Crews testified that the answers contained in the boxes in the’

questionnaire were not true and never had been true (Tr. 272-274).

Mr. Zimmer testified that the respondents’ representatives came
around with the questionnaire and indicated that the company had
found a number of incomplete papers behind a desk and that they

-wanted to be sure he had received all documents which he was entitled

to and that it was to be used merely for public relation purposes (Tr.

302, 305). He also stated that he did not read the statement (Tr: 304).

- Mr. Dunbar testified that he did not read the statement and that

the answers were marked by the company’s representative (Tr. 855).
The statements contained in the quesﬁbnnalre are unclear and

capable of misinterpretation. The testimony of Mr. Henning

.indicates the possibility of mlsmterpretatlon because of the omlssmn'

of dates (Tr. 75-76)." ‘

‘Mr. Wiemer testified that he did not undersband bhe quesblons'
asked in the questionnaire (Tr. 119). Mrs. Szczepanski stated that
she did not understand the questions and only later realized that what
she had signed was not the truth (Tr. 179). Mrs. McKnight testi-
fied that her answers to the questionnaire were erroneous (Tr. 229-
231).

14. Respondents Richard J. Fabrizi and James J Rebis are officers
of said corporation. Their address is the same as that of the corporate
respondent. (Admitted by Respondents’ Answer, and Amended An-
swer to Paragraph One of the Complaint, and Stipulation (Tr. 44).)

'15. Respondents Richard J. Fabrizi and James J. Rebis are re-
sponsible for the acts and practices of Fabbis, Inc., with regard to
the requirements of the Truth in Lending Act.

‘Mr. Fabrizi testified that he and Mr. Rebis are the pr951dent and
vice president, respectively, of the corporate respondent, and have
been such since the firm’s incorporation in 1963 (Tr. 84-86). They are
its chief operating officers, being the company’s general manager (Tr.
78) and its sales manager (Tr. 85). During the entire corporate
existence the individual respondents, Messrs. Fabrizi and Rebis, have
been the company’s sole stockholders, sharing the stock equally (Tr.
84, 86, 411). In essence, the company is a continuation of the informal
partnership between these individuals which was begun several years
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prior to formation of the present corporation (Stipulation, Tr. 44).
The very name of the corporation, “Fabbis,” was derived from a com-
bination of the first part of Mr. Fabrizi’s name and the last part of
Mr. Rebis’ name (Tr. 84). ; I

The individual respondents testified that they were aware of what
Regulation Z required of them. Mr. Fabrizi stated that the lending
institutions with which the respondents dealt informed him and Mr.
Rebis about these requirements (Tr. 90). Marine Midland’s sales
representative, Frank Griffin, testified that he called upon the individ-
ual respondents many times regarding Truth in Lending matters
and spoke with them personally (Tr. 877-379). Additionally, the in-
dividual respondents had conferences with their attorney relating
to compliance with Truth in Lending (Tr. 415). Mr. Rebis testified
that he and Mr. Fabrizi knew what their company was required to
do to.comply with the law (Tr. 528). ’

Mr. Fabrizi testified that he or Mr. Rebis telephoned one out of
ten ‘customers when the law first became effective to ascertain whether
they received their copies of the bank papers (Tr. 95).

Mr. Rebis hired all the company salesmen, was responsible for
assigning them their duties and supervising their activities (Tr. 85-
87). Together, the individual respondents hired George Rease (Tr.
86) whose duty it was to make consumer credit cost disclosures and
to secure execution of retail installment obligations on the finance paper
of the various local banks (Tr. 94). Mr. Rease was, and is, responsible
to them for his activities (Tr. 87). Mr. Rease testified that he has
been employed by the company for 7 years (Tr. 427) and that he sees
Messrs. Fabrizi and Rebis every day that they are in town and often
discusses individual consumer credit transactions with them (Tr. 443
444). He testified that Mr. Fabrizi was shown every paper relating
to every transaction of the company during the period in question
(Tr. 444). :

REASONS FOR DECISION

The threshold question in this matter, ‘.e., the power of Congress
to legislate on credit questions regardless of their interstate character
has been resolved by the Supreme Court’s action on another Title of the
Truth in Lending legislation.® Since the jurisdiction delegated to the
Commission expressly deals with the the question of commerce and
states that the Commission may act “irrespective of whether the per-
son is engaged in commerce * * *. 4 The question of jurisdiction re-
quires no further comment.

3 Perez v. United States 39 LW 4487 [402 U.S. 146], April 26, 1971.
415 U.S.C. 1601.
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. The next serious question involves the credibility of the consumer
witnesses. Respondents take the position that because the witnesses;
prior to the trial, signed statements for the respondents that were
contradwtory to thelr testimony (some both in the. form of questlon-
naires and also in the form of written statements and others in the
form of questionnaires only) their testimony should be glven no
weight. We disagree.

The questionnaires were presented as a form of public relatlons;
dévice. “Help Us Maintain Good Business” was the title. These ques-
tionnaires were made out after the investigation by the Federal Trade-
Commission was commenced, and designed, not by counsel who would
have hiad a responsibility to the Commission to insure that they were
properly taken, but, by employees of the corporate. respondent who
weré wholly untrained and who were clearly intefested in securing
the “right” answers. The written statements were not secured until
after the complaint was issued and the list of witnesses submitted to
counsel. These too were taken, not by counsel, but by one of the .re-
‘spondents accompanied by another employee. One witness was told-
that she could avoid coming to the hearing if she signed (Tr. 202-203).
Under the circumstances, the weight of the eombined testimony: under:-
oath that the questionnaires and statements wére false malkes it
much more probable than not that the respondents had failed to abide
by the Truth in Lending Act and regulations. This is particularly
true when the recollection of the respondents’ employees was vague
concerning their instructions in securing the questionnaires and con-
cerning the events which gave rise to the requirements for notice of
rescission and delay of commencement of the work. Moreover, sev-
eral of respondents’ witnesses made it clear that the question of how
the financing was to be done was discussed before the sales proposal
was signed and at that time the prerequisites of disclosure were not
complied with so that the customers had no opportunity to compare
financing costs. The contention that the transactions started out as -
cash transactions and only later credit was sought is inherently in-
credible, despite the form of the proposal.’ The witnesses made it very
apparent in their testimony that they they could not afford the large
expenditures required and had to secure financing. We turn next to the
far more serious question of the waiver of lien by respondents.

Respondents contend and the papers filed establish that they waived

- any lien they would secure on the property. Thus, they claim the trans-

action does not create any security interest and accordingly it is not

5 We need therefore not consider the claim by respondents that they had secured an
interpretation from the Chief of the New York Office of the Federal Trade Commission
that in the case of financing, not discussed at the time of the proposal but later requested,
the provisions of the act and regulation have no application.
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‘rescindable. Respondents further claim that an mterpretatlon to this
, eﬁ’ect was secured from the Chief of ‘the New York Oiﬁce of the
Commission.s
Complaint counsel take the position that even. though the waiver
might be effective to prevent respondents from securing a lien on the
property for themselves, the New York lien law creates a lien in favor
of their workmen and their material sup{phes in the event that the
wages or material charges are not paid” and it was the purpose of
the Truth in Lending legislation to require that. all liens be consid-
ered even t‘)hough not under the control of the lender. This posi-
tion, it seems to the undersigned is Wholly unwarranted. It would
make it mpossxble ever to secure a waiver because, particularly in
the case of union labor where the union may dispatch the employees di-
rectly to the job, the employer would not even know who they were at -
' the time the transaction was entered into and could not secure waivers
from them. There is moreover, here, no claim that the materialen
were unpaid or that the workmen did not receive their WAZeS. To the
-contrary, the materials were paid for in the normal course in advance
of their delivery to the job. Unless the law and regulations are to be
construed to require a waiting period and a right to rescission in all
cases—which is clearly not true since a waiver by the customer in cases
of emergency is provided for *—there cannot be a requirement that the
possible liens of workmen and materialmen must be waived also. By
reason of the waivers of the banks and of the respondents, it seems to
me that this phase of the charge must be dismissed.
This is not, however, dispositive of the proceeding. Paragraph Five
of the complaint contains the following charge:

In connection with the consumer credit transactions set forth in Paragraphs
Three and Four® hereof, respondents prepare documents containing consumer

8 Since the person by whom the interpretation was allegedly given was not called to
deny it, we must assume that the claim was correct. While as a matter of law such inter-
pretation may carry little weight, from the standpoint of the public interest in issuing
an order in this matter it may be very significant.

7 McKinneys “Lien Law’ Volume Article 1, 1-3.

81 have not discussed the waiver by the customer of the waiting period because respond-
ents admit that the waivers secured were inadequate.

2 The paragraphs referred to provide as follows:

Paragraph Three: In the ordinary course and conduct of their business as aforesald,
respondents arrange, and for some time last past regularly have arranged, for the extension
of consumer credit, as “consumer credit” is defined in Regulation Z, the implementing
regulation of the Truth in Lending Act, duly promulgated by the Board of Governors of
the Federal Reserve System.

Paragraph Four : Subsequent to July 1, 1969, respondents in the ordinary course and
conduct of their business and in connection with their arranging for consumer credit, have
caused, and are causing, customers to execute retail installment contracts, herein referred
to as ‘“the comtract,” which results or may result in a security interest being retained or
acquired in real property which is used or is expected to be used as the principal residence
of the customer. The customers thereby have the right to rescind such transactions, as.
provided in Section 226.9(a) of Regulation Z.
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credit cost dJsclosures requu'ed by Section 226.8.of Regulation Z and obtain from
customers writtén acknowledgment of recelpt of these dlsclosures, but in some
instances nevertheless fail to prov1de ‘the cristomer with a copy of such ‘dis-

closures, as required by Section 226. 8(a) of Regulation Z.

" This it seems to the hearing examiner includes a charge that the
customer is not provided with the’ cost disclosures prior to the time
he or she signs the sales ‘proposal. This is true because Sectmn 2‘)6 8
'(a) of Regulation Z speclﬁca,lly prowdes .

(a). General rule. Any credltor When extending credlt other than open end
credit shall, in accordance with § 226.6 and to the extent apphcable, make the

‘dlsclosures required by this section with respect to any transactlon consum-
‘mated on or-after July 1, 1969; Except as ‘provided in paragraphs (g) and’' (h)
- of .this:section™ such disclosures- shall -be made: before the ‘transaction is con-

summated. At the time disclosures are made; the creditor: shall furnish the.cus-
tomer w1th a duphcate of the instrument or.a statement by which the, required
dlsclosures are made and on which the credltor ls 1dent1ﬁed All of the dls- .

: closures shall be ‘made’ togéther on either

(1) The note or other instrument evidencing the’ obhgatwn on the’ same side

" of the page and above or adjacent to:the place for the customer’s signature; or

(2).-One side of a separate statement Wthh 1dent1ﬁes the transactwn. (Em-

.phasxs and Footnote ‘added)

Admittedly; it was the pra,ctlce of t,he sa,lesmen pI’lOI‘ to November

‘or early December 1969 when Mr. Rease was in sole ¢harge of handling

the “bank papers” to secure the commitment in the sales proposal and
then to call Mr. Rease to come over to the customer’s house and have the

10 The subsections referred to have no applicability. They read as follows:
(g) Orders by mail or telephone, If a creditor receives a purchase order or a request

for an extension of credit by mail, telephone, or written communication without personal

solicitation, the disclosures required under this section may be made any time not later
than the date the first payment is due, provided :

(1) In the case of credit sales, the cash price, the downpayment, the finance charge,
the deferred payment price, the annual percentage rate, and the number, frequency, and
amount of payments are set forth in or are determinable from the creditor’s catalog or
other printed material distributed to the public; or

(2) In the case of loans or other extensions of credit, the amount of the loan, the
finance charge, the total scheduled payments, the number, frequency, and amount of pay-
ments, and the annual percentage rate for representative amounts or ranges of credit are
set forth in or are determinable from the creditor’s printed material distributed to the
public, in the contract of loam, or in other printed material delivered or made available .
to the customer.

(h) Series of sales. If a credit sale is one of a series of transactions made pursuant to
an agreement providing for the addition of the amount financed plus the finance charge
for the current sale to an existing outstanding balance, then the disclosures required under
this section for the current sale may be made at any time not later than the date the first
payment for that sale is due, provided :

(1) The customer has approved in writing both the annual percentage rate or rates
and the method of treating any unearned finance charge on an existing outstanding balance
in computing the finance charge or charges; and

(2) The creditor retains no security interest in any property as to which he has received
payments aggregating the amount of the sale price including any finance charges attribut-
able thereto. For the purposes of this subparagraph, in the case of items purchased on
different dates, the first purchased shall be deemed first paid for, and in the case of items
purchased on the same date, the lowest priced shall be deemed first paid for.
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other papers signed. Thus the customers did not at the time they
agreed to the purchase on time have any disclosure: Q»_f.whsft_ythe,cost of
financing would be. So the expressed purpose of the Act k& * that
the customer will be able to compare more readily the various credit
terms available to him and avoid the uninformed use of credit” (15
U.S.C. § 1661) was frustrated. R T
Accordingly, the following conclusions and order should be entered :

CONCLUSIONS

L. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction over respondents
and over the subject matter of this proceeding. Under the law it is not
necessary that the transaction be in interstate commerce. -

- 2. The individual respondents, by reason of their ownership of the

corporate respondent, their direction and control over its operations,

and the history of the corporation assuccessor to a partnershipinvolv-

ing the individual respondents and the ease with which the corporation
“could be eliminated, should be held individually responsibls if the
' corporation is held responsible, P e T

3. The corporation and the banks validly waived any security inter-
est they might have over the residences of respondents’ customers and
thus no right of rescission arose. , :

Securing a waiver from others who might conceivably secure a lien,
in the event of malfeasance of respondents in failing to pay their obli-
gations to wage earners and materialmen, is not required by the Act.

4. The respondents systematically failed to afford to the prospective
customers the disclosure of the credit costs before the sales order was
executed and a downpayment made. Thus the requirements of Sec-
tion 226.8(a) of Regulation Z were not met and the purpose of the
Act was not carried out. :

5. The following order should be issued :

ORDER

1t is ordered, That respondents Fabbis, Inc., a corporation, doing
business as Rochester Plumbing and Heating Contractors or under any
other name, and its officers, and Richard J. Fabrizi and James J. Rebis,
individually and as officers of said corporation, and respondents’
agents, representatives and employees, directly or through any cor-
porate or other device, in connection with any consumer credit sale, as
“consumer credit” and “credit sale” are defined in Regulation Z (12
C.F.R. § 226) of the Truth in Lending Act (Pub. T.. 90-321, 15 U.S.C.
1601, et seq.), do forthwith cease and desist from :
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1. Fallmg to provide any customer prior to consummation of
the transaction with a copy, which the customer may retain; of all
 disclosures requn'ed to be made by Section 226.8 of Regulation Z,
 'in the form and manner prescribed therein, as required by Sec-
tion 226.8(a) of Regulation Z.
2. Failing, in any consumer credit transa,ctmn or advertlsement
" to make all disclosures requlred by Sections 226.6, 226.8,226.9 and
226.10 of Regulation Z, in the manner, form and amount pre-
scribed therein.
1t is further ordered, That a copy of this order to cease and desist
be delivered to all present and future personnel of respondents en-
gaged in the consummation of any credit sale, and that regpondents
secure from each snch person a signed sta,tement a,ck:newledgmg re-
-eeipt of said order. .
1t is further ordered, Tha,!: respondents notlfy the Commission at
least thirty (80) days prior to any proposed change in the corporate ‘
respondent such as dlssolutmnz assignment, or sale, resultant in the
emergence of a successor corpora,tlon, the creation or dlssolutmn of
subsidigries, or any other cha,nge in the corporation which ma,y affect
- compliance obligations arising out of the order. '

CONCURRING ,STATEMENT oF CHAIRMAN KIREPATRICK

I have serious reservations about the validity of Sections 226.9(a) -
and 226.2(z) of Regulation Z insofar as they define nonconsensual
mechanics’ liens arising by operation of law to be security interests
which trigger the Act’s rescission provisions. I would not have inter-
preted Section 125(a) of the Act in this way, and I believe the Board
may have exceeded its authority in so doing.

I am reluctant, however, to take a position which, if adopted oy the
majority, would result in an unreviewable decision to terminate most
governmental enforcement in this regard. The opportunity for ap-
pellate review is foreclosed, of course, when the Commission decides an
issue in the favor of the respondent. That factor alone would not ordi-
narily influence my judgment. In this particular instance, however,
1 believe that for a variety of reasons the Commission’s decision should
be subject to the serutiny of full judicial review.

The validity of the regulations here at issue presents a close ques-
tion—one which involves a difficult matter of statutory interpreta-
tion. As the majority notes, courts in two jurisdictions have dis-
agreed on whether or not Section 125(a) of the statute applies in the
factual situation here present. The statute itself provides little guid-
ance in determining the precise limits of the Board’s discretion in
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interpreting the statute Acoordmg to Section 105, regulations are.
valid if, “in the judgment of the Board (they) are necessary or proper
to effectuate the purposes of (the statute) to prevent circumvention or
evasion thereof or to facilitate compliance therewith.” (emphasis
added). Thus, the law gives the Board a broad mandate for the exer-
cisé and application of its expertise; and the outer boundaries of its
discretion have not to date been satisfactorily defined. :
To its task of interpreting the statute, the Board brings consider-
able knowledge acquired from its long involvement with monetary
“and credit-matters, as well d4s from public comments which it receives

on all regulations before they are promulgated in final form. We have

little' iridication on. this record of the factors which in the Board’s
judgment madé necessary and proper the 1nterpretat10n of the statute
here chdllenged. ‘

In these circumstances and in a case which. does not involve a clear -
abuse of discretion, I am not inclined to rule that the regulations
of a Congressionally erbpowered ex'pert body opera;tmg under so broad.
a mandate-are invalid.

Accordingly, I concur in the dlsposmmnwof thisease.

© OpinioN or THE CoMMISSION

By MacIntyre, Commissioner:

~ This matter is before the Commission upon the appeal of complaint .
counsel from the initial decision of the administrative law judge filed
June 16, 1971. In this decision the administrative. law judge held that
some, but not all, of the charges of the complaint were sustained, and
he entered an order to cease and desist as to those practices he found
to be unlawful. Complaint counsel filed an appeal, resporidents have
answered such appeal, and complaint counsel. in turn have filed a
reply. Oral argument on the appeal was held January 6, 1972.

The complaint charges the respondents with violations of the Truth
in Lending Act (15 U.S.C. 1601, ¢¢ seq.) (referred to hereafter as the
Act) and Regulation Z (12 C.F.R. §226), the implementing regula-
tion, as well as the Federal Trade Commission Act (15 U.S.C. 41,
et seq.). The charges are, in general, that respondents, in connection
with the extension of consumer credlt in transactions covered by the
Act, have failed, as required by Refrula,tlon Z, to provide customers
w1th a copy. of cohsumer credit cost dlsclosures have failed, as re-
quired by Regulation Z, to prov1de their customers with copies of a
notice of the right of rescission; and have failed, as required by Regu-
lation Z, to delay, during the three -day rescission period, the making
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of physical changes in the customers’ property and the commencement
of work or.service.

' The respondents are Fabbis, Inc., a New York corporation domo
business as Rochester Plumbing and Heating Contractors, as well as
the individuals Robert J. Fabrizi and James J. Rebis, named individ-
‘ually and as officers of the named corporation. The respondents, at
the time of the hearing and prior thereto, engaged in the sale of plumb-
ing and heating equipment and installation services to the public.

The administrative law judge, in his initial decision, held that re-
spondents systemmatically failed to afford prospective customers the
disclosure of credit costs béfore the sales order was executed and a
downpayment made; thus, that the requirements of Section 226.8(a)
of Regulation Z weré not met-and the purpose of the Act not carried
out. He included in his initial decision an order to prohibit such prac-
tices. The administrative law judge failed to find a violation of law,
however; insofar as the respondents were charged with fa1hng to pro-
vide their customers with notices of the right of rescission ak required
by Section 226.9(b) of Regulation Z and with the failure-to delay
“performance during the three -day rescission period required by Sec-
tion 226.9(c) of Regulation Z. On the two latter charges the adminis-
trative law judge agreed with respondents’ contention that since the
corporation and the banks providing the loan money had waived any
security interest they might have in the property there was thus no
right of rescission for the customer. He rejected complaint counsel’s
position that liens created by operation of law, such as workmen’s
and materialmen’s Liens, constituted a security interest under the Act
and made the transactions rescindable.

Complaint counsel appeals from the part of the lnltlal decision in
which the administrative law judge failed to find violations of law as

N charged in the complaint, contending that he was in error in not hold-

ing respondents’ credit transactions to be rescindable and therefore
subject to the requirements of the Act and Regulation Z covering the
customer’s right of rescission. Complaint counsel requests that the
order prohibit for the future all the violations charged and in addi-
tion he seeks a provision in the order which would require respondents
to afford their customers in prior transactions the right to rescind such
transactions.

Except for a question on the scope of the order, there is only one
issue of substance raised by complaint counsel’s appeal It is whether
or not respondents’ credit transactions are rescindable transactions,
and therefore subject to Section 125 of the Act and to Section 226.9 of
Regulation Z providing a right of rescission, where respondent cor-
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poration and the banks making the loans acted to waive all their
Security interest but where mechanic’s liens or liens created by opera-
tion of law in favor of workmen and others were not waived.* :
Since July 1, 1969 (the effective date of Regulation Z), respondents,
_in connection with the arranging for consumer credit caused cus-
tomers to execute retail installment contracts to finance home im-
provements on real property used as customers’ principal residences
(finding 4, page 4 [p. 682, herein], initial decision). The record is
clear, and the administrative law judge found, that respondents failed
to supply ‘copies of the required notice to such customers of their right
of rescission and that they further failed to delay the making of physi-
cal changes in the customers’ properties and the performing of work on
such residences during the three-day rescission period (findings 9 and
10, pages 5 and 6 [pp. 683 and 684, herein] of the initial decision). -
Although respondents claim that respondent corporation and the
lending banks waived all of their security interest in the transactions
irivolved, they made no such claim for the liens created by operation
of state law covering subcontractors, workmen and others. The ad-
ministrative law judge specifically found that no waivers of work-
men’s liens were presented at the hearing (finding 6, page 4 [p. 682,
hereir], initial decision). Respondents, who have the burden of going
forward with the evidence on this point since they seek to establish
that they come within an exception to the general requirements of the
statute, have made no showing of a waiver of workmen’s liens or
of all other liens created by operation of law. Furthermore, the credit

1 Section 125(a) of the Act reads in part: -

“Hxcept as otherwise provided in this section [exceptions which are not here applicable],
in the case of any consumer credit transaction in which a security interest is retained or
acquired in any real property which is used or is expected to be used as the residence of
the person to whom credit is extended, the obligor shall have the right to rescind the
transaction until midnight of the third business day following the consummation of the
transaction or the delivery of the disclosures required under this section and all other
material disclosures required under this chapter, whichever is later, by notifving the
creditor, in accordance with the regulations of the Board, of his intention to do so. * ¥ *”

Section 226.9 of Regulation Z implements this section of the Act and reads in part:

«x % * Wxcept as otherwise provided in this section, in the case of any credit trans-
action in which a security Interest is or will be retained or acquired in any real property
which i1s used or is expected to be used as the principal residence of the customer, the
customer shall have the right to rescind that transaction until midnight of the third busi-
ness day following the date of consutnmation of that transaction or the date of delivery
of the disclosures required under this section and all other material disclosures required
under this Part, whichever is later, by notifying the creditor by mail, telegram, or other

~ writing of his intention to do so. * * *7

Other parts of Section 226.9 contain requirements relating to notice for opportunity to
rescind, delay of performance and other matters.
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forms used by the respondent corporation suggest that mechanic’s
liens. of subcontractors, laborers and others were not wawed 2 o
There is no dispute that the law of the State of New York, the j ]uI’lS- :
diction in which the transactions presented herem took place, grants
mechanic’s liens on customers’ homes to subcontractors, laborers and -
others for work performed (N.Y. Lien Law, § 3 (McKinney 1966) ).
Respondent corporation employed workmen to install the plumbing
-and heating equipment it sold to customers (finding 5, page 4 [p. 682,
“herein], in initial decision). Thus, it appears that if the mechanic’s
liens or the right to such liens granted to respondents’ Workmen by
operatlon of law are a security interest within' the meaning of that
term in the Act, respondents are in violation of the Act and Regula-
tion: Z. .
It is our view that a. security interest under the Act does mclude‘
mechanic’s liens and other liens created by operatlon of law. In- this
view we: follow the holding and the reasoning: of the' Circuit Court of
the United States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia,
which lield to that effect in Gardner and North Roofing Siding Gorpo- .
rationv. Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve: Board; 464 F. 24
838 (DC Cir. 1972) 5 4 CCH Consumer Credit Guide § 99159.% At
issue in the Gardner case was the validity of the Board’s regulations;
which had the effect of requiring the seller to notify a customer of his
right to rescind when there is a probability that a lien on his house
will arise by operation of law evén though he has not executed an
indenturé on the property The statute (Section 125(a)) provides for
the right of rescission in a consumer credit transaction “in which a
security interest is retained or acquired” in ‘customers’ residences,
whereas the Board’s regulation reads in pertinent part: “in which a

2 A section of respondents’ ‘“Retail Installment Obligation” used in the transactions
shown in the record reads as follows : ,

“3. SECURITY INTERESTS : Represents that, except as a. provision is made in ‘D~2’
of this Obligation for the execution and delivery of a Collateral Mortgage on the above
‘Property to be Improved’ by the Buyer(s) [and by any other owner(s) of any interest
in said Property] to the Bank designated above, and/or b. the right to a Mechanic¢’s Lien
on said Property of a subcontractor, laborer, materialman, or other person (excluding the
Seller) who performs labor or furnishes materials for the improvement thereof, may be a
security interest in said Property within the meaning of ‘security interest’ as used in
Federal Reserve Board Regulation Z, no security interest is or is to be held, retained or
acquired by the Seller, the Bank designated above, or any other person in connection with
the extension of credit evidenced by this Obligation.” (Commission Exhibit 9—j. )

2The same or a similar issue is raised in N. C. Freed Company, Inc., et al. v. Board of
Governors of the Federal Reserve System, U.S.D.C. W.D.N.Y. September 29, 1971, CCH
Consumer Credit Guide § 99356. The district court in the case held that only contracts
which acquired a security interest through a mortgagé, deed of trust, or other type
consensual liens are rescindable; that Conmgress did not include llens which arise in the
future by operation of law. The Freed case has been appealed to the United States Court
of Appeals for the Second Circuit. N. C. Freed Company, Inc., et al. v. Board of Governors
of Federal Reserve Board, appeal docketed, No. 72-1381 (2d Cir.).
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security interest is or- will be retained or acquired” (§226 ’9(3))
(emphasis supplied). The Board also defined the term “security in-
terest” to include liens created by operation of law (§226.2(z)). ‘The
court upbeld the Reserve Board’s regulations on this point. It rea-
soned. in part that a contract to renovate, remodel or repair a house
imports the materials will be furnished in connection with that work;
and that, therefore, émplicit in the contract is a provision that a lien
will attach to secure payment for the work and the materials.. We be-
lieve it is clear from the decision that, the court’s reasoning and its
holding .covers all nonconsensual security interests, including.. the
mechanic’s liens granted. by statute to the creditor as a contractor or.
supplier; as well as mechanic’s liens granted to third parties not privy
to the original contract, such as subcontractors, laborers and. others,
for their work, services.or materials, . -

" Aceordingly, we-hold that respondents violated the Act and Regu-
lation Z not only in the respects found by the administrative law judge
but also in the other respects charged in the complaint, i.e., for failing
to provide notice. of rescission and for failing to delay performance .
within the three-day perlod provided by law.

There is no: direct issue before the Commission on the Vahdlty of
respondents’ waiver policy. That issue would have been before us had
respondents shown that all security interests were waived, including
the mechanic’s liens of their workmen and others. In the circumstances
there is no need to inquire into the validity and appropriateness of the
waivers. They were incomplete and so the defense must fail.#

- It should be noted, however, that Section 226.901 also provides that
if, as a result of the transactlon, a security interest is or will be retained
or acquired by a subcontractor, workman or other person, the trans-
action is rescindable and the creditor then would be responsible for
delivering the rescission notice and the applicable disclosures and for
delaying performance.

4 Neither the Act nor Regulation Z expressly provides for the walver of security in-
terests. The only explicit language on waiver they contain is that for the customer’s
waiver of his right of rescission under certain emergency-type circumstances (see Section
125(d) of the Act and Section 226.9(e) of Regulation Z). The concept of a waiver of
security interest by the creditor appears in Section 226.901 of the Reserve Board's
“interpretations” of Regulation Z. This interpretation section provides that where a
creditor effectively waives his right to retain or to acquire a mechanie’s or a materialmen’s
lien he has not retained or acquired that security intefest. Under this interpretation, if
all security interests are waived, the transaction is not rescindable and the creditor does
not have to comply with Séction 125 of the Act and the regulation concermng the con-
sumer’s right of rescission. .

It should be noted, howerver, that Section 226.901 also provides that if, as a result
of the transaction, a security interest is or will be retained or acquired by a subcontractor,
workman or other person, the transaction is resclndable and the creditor then would be
responsible for delivering the rescission notice ‘and 'the -applicable disclosures and for
delaying performance.

494-841—73—45
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" Asindicated above, complamt counsel, so far as: remedy is concerned
contends ‘for & new paragraph in the order which" WOlﬂd requlre re-
sponderits-on ‘past sales between July 1, 1969 snd J: anuary 18, 1971,
for which they’ arranged the extension of consumer credit and in Whlch
& secunty interest in real property was retained or acqulred to afford
the customers involved; within fourteen days -of the receipt of a speei-
fied notice, ‘the opportunity to Tescind ‘the trarisactions: The- Commis-
* sion’s ‘order; he argues, can ‘and should ‘compel reéspondents to give
their credit custornérs what they are ‘entitled to under the-Act and
regulations. He claims that such a remedy ‘will- ‘bear' more than a
reasonable relationship to the violations uncovered Complamt counsel
cites the relief granted by the hearlnor exammer in another ma,tter, v
Charnita, Iné.yet al., Docket No. 8829. 2t B :
~ The Commlsswn, on June 6, 1972 [80 FT Cr 892], 1ssued its: own
decision in that’ Charnite matter, holding, among: othér things; that so
far as certain lot-buying customers were concerned those respondents
had “an unfulfilled and contmumg duty to give notice, in accordance
with Section 226.9 of Regulatmn Z, of the customers’ right of rescis-
sion.” The Commission there further stated that “[u]ntil‘such notice
is given, respondents are thus in a continuing violation of the statute.”
" “We do not believe that the same approach is justified on the facts
in this pr oceedmg Charnite concerned land sales, not home improve-
ment sales as in this case. The installations and alterations involved
in home improvement transactions cannot easily be undone, if they
can be undone at all. These improvements are generally of a permanent
nature, such as the installation of a new furnace, new air conditioning
“equipment and the like. Removal of this equlpment will often be im-
practical and possibly damaging to the house in which it is installed.
Furthermore, removal could lead to additional expenses to the home
owner. Inflation and other factors might easily make replacement more
costly than was the original installation. In such a case a mere rlght ,
to rescind, without more, would not restore the customer to his prior
position and might be detrimental to him 1f the seller in fact 1emoved
~ the equlpment
A p10v1310n in the Reserve Board’s regulation covering the right of
rescission (Section 226. 9(d) of Regulatlon Z) appears to be dlrected
to this situation. It statesin part:
If the creditor has delivered any property to the customer, the customer may
retain possession of it. Upon the performance of the creditor’s obhgatlons under
this section, the customer shall tender the property to the creditor, except that

if return of the property in kind would be impracticable or inequitable, the
customer shall tender its reasonable value. * ok kM
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While ‘the record: here has not:been developed on: this point, it may
e assumed that in’ most of the transactions return of the creditor’s
‘property would be 1mpractlcab1e and so cancellations would neces-
sarily raise problems as to the return of “reasonable value.” Very
likely each situation would require individual negotiation to arrive at
equitable results. We further assumé in these situations of cancellation
that under the Board’s rule the customer would have the option of

‘removal or of tendermo reasonable Value, though this is not altogether
‘clear. o
This matter, thelefore, raises’ problems as mentloned of likely' ad-
justments and negotiations not present in Charnita and the facts
developed in this record are inadequate to make approprlate deternu-
nations as to just how such an order would work or what its 1mpact
‘would be insofar as the home owners are concerned or the respondents.
Without greater factual details on this point we do not believe that an
order Ioo]ﬂncr to past transactmns is justified on this record ’

In our view; it would not be helpful to remand this matter for the
taking of additional eviderice on the scope of the order. Time is im-
‘portant in order te provide protection to. respondents’ future customers.
~We believe that a broader public interest will be served by seeking an
immediate enforcement of a prospective order to cease and desist rathel
than to suffer the inevitable delays which would result from a remand
for further facts.

In connection with the order, there is one further point which should
be mentioned. The admmlstmtlve law judge, in footnote 6, page 12
[p. 689, herein], stated that he assumed the correctness of respondents’
claim to the effect they were advised by the head of the New York
office that their transactions because of their waiver policy were not
rescindable. He based this assumption on the fact that the person
referred to was not called to deny the claim. The next sentence in the
footnote reads: “While as a matter of law such interpretation [by the
New York office head] may carry little weight, from the standpoint
of the public interest in issuing an order in this matter it may be very
significant.” Whether or not the administrative law judge’s assump-
tion is warranted, we donot agree with the sentence above quoted if he
‘means by this that the Comnnsswn is thereby in some way not fully
free to issue an appropriate order in this case in the public interest.
No principle of equitable estoppel bars the Commission from the per-
formance of its duty because of the mistaken action of subordinates.
Double Eagle Lubricants v. F.T.C., 360 F. 2d 268,270  (10th Cir.1965).
To prevent any misinterpretation on the issue we will strike the
footnote. :
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Accordingly, complaint counsel’s appeal will be granted to the ex-
tent above indicated and otherwise denied. The initial decision of '
the hearing examiner will be modified so as to conform to the views
expressed in this opinion and as modified adopted as the decision of
the Commission. : :

Finan OrbEr

~ This matter having been heard by the Commission upon complaint
counsel’s appeal from the administrative law judge’s initial decision
and upon briefs and oral argument in support thereof and in opposi-
- tion thereto; and

The Commlssmn having rendered 1ts decision deternunmg that the
initial decision should be modified in accordance with the views and
for the reasons stated in the accompanying opinion and as modlﬁed
adopted as the decision of the Commission :

It is ordered, That pages 123 and 13 [supra at 688—90] of the admm
istrative law judge’s initial decision be modified as follows:

- witnesses made it very apparent in their testimony that they could not afford
the large expenditures required and had to secure firiancing. We turn next to.the
far more serious question of the waiver of lien by respondents.

Respondents contend that they waived any lien they would secure on the
property. Thus, they claim the transaction does not create any security interest -
and accordingly it is not rescindable. Respondents further claim that an inter-
pretation to this effect was secured from the Chief of the New York Office of
the Commission.

Complaint counsel take the position that even though the waiver might be -
effective to prevent respondents from securing a lien 'on the property for them-
selves, the New York lien law creates a lien in favor of their workmen and
their material suppliers in the event that the wages or material chai'ges are
not paid ® and it was the purpose of the Truth in Lending legislation to require
that all liens be considered even though not under the control of the lender. The
position of complaint counsel is correct for the reasons stated by the court in
Gardner and North Roofing and Siding Corporation v. Board of Governors of
the Federal Reserve Board, 464 F. 2d 838 (D.C. Cir. 1972) ; 4 CCH Consumer
Credit Guide § 99159. Accordingly, respondents’ transactions shown on this ree-
ord were rescindable and subject to the requirements of §226.9 of Regulation Z
governing the customer’s right to rescind.

Paragraph Five of the complaint contains the following charge

“In connection with the consumer credit transactions set forth in Para-
graphs Three and Four” hereof, respondents. prepare documents containing
consumer credit cost disclosures required by Section 226.8 of Regulation Z
and obtain from customers written acknowledgment of receipt of these dis-
closures, but in some instances nevertheless fail to provide the customer
with a copy of such disclosures, as required by Section 226.8(a) of Regula-

- tion Z.” .

This it seems to the hearing examiner includes a charge that the customer is
not provided with the cost disclosures prior to the time he or she signs the sales
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proposal.. ThlS -is true . because Sectlon 226. 8(a) of ‘Regulation Z specifically
provides: :

" ®McKinneys “Lien Law” Volume Article 1, 1-3.
7The paragraph referred to provide as follows : )
“PARAGRAPH THREE: In the ordinary course and conduct of their business

as aforesaid, respondents arrange, and for some time last past regularly have

arranged, for the extension of consumer credit, as ‘consumer credit’ is defined
in Regulation Z, the implementing regulation of the Truth in Lending Act,
duly promulgated by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System.
“PARAGRAPH FOUR: Subsequent to July 1, 1969, respondents in the ordi-
nary course and conduct of their business and in connection with their arrang-
ing for consumer credit, have caused, and are causing, customers to execute
retail installment contracts, herein referred to as ‘the contract’, which results
or may result in a security interest being retained or acquired in real property
which is used or is expected to be used as the principal residence of the cus-
tomer. The customers thereby have the right to rescind such transactlons, as

provided in Section 226.9(a) of Regulation Z.”

It i8 further ordered, That footnote 10, page 14 [supm 690], in the

initial decision be, and it hereby is, renumbered 8.
1t is. further ordered, That conclusion 3 on page 16 [supm at 691]

of the initial decision be and it hereby is, modified to read as follows:

3. Respondents, in credit transactions shown in this record,
violated the Truth in Lending Act and Section 226.9 (b) of Regu-
ulation Z by failing to provide their customers with the oppor-
_tunity to rescind and copies of a notice of the right of rescission
in accordance with the regulation. Respondents, in credit trans-
actions shown on this record, violiated the Truth in Lending Act
and Section 226.9(c) of Regulation Z by failing to delay during
the three-day rescission period making physical changes in the
customer’s property and in the performing of work and services
for such customers. The claim that security interests were waived
is rejected because there is no showing that all liens created by
operation of law, such as mechanic’s liens of workmen, were
waived.
It is further ordered, That the order contamed in the initial decision
be modified to read as follows:

ORDER

It is ordered, That respondents Fabbis, Inc., a corporation,
doing business as Rochester, Plumbing and Heating Contractors
or under any other name, and. its:officers,-and :Richard J. Fabrizi
and James J. Rebis, individually and as officers of said corpora-
tion, and respondents’ agents, representatives and employees, di-
rectly or through any corporate or other device, in connection.
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‘with any consumer credit sale, as “consumer credit” and.“credit
sale” are defined in Regulation Z (12 C.F.R. § 226) of the Truth
in Lending Act (Pub. L. 90-321, 15 U.S.C. 1601 e? seq. ) do forth-
with cease and desist from :

1. Failing to provide any customer prior to consummatlon
- of the transaction with a copy,-which the customer may re-
- tain, of all disclosures required to be made by Section 226.8
©of Regulatlon Z, in the form and manner prescrlbed thereln,

~ as required by Sectlon 9296.8(a) of Regulation Z.
2. Failing, in any transaction in which a security interest
is- or will be: retained or acquired in‘real property whichris
* used or is expected to be used as the principal residence of
© - the’ customer, to prov1de each customer with notice of the
L Mrlght to rescmd in the form and manner specified by Sectlon
296.9(b) of Regulatlon 2, prlor to consummation of the
- transaction. . ~
3. Makmg any physmal changes m a customer s property :

- sueh property before explmtlon, of the resmssmn pemod pro-
vided- for in. Sectlen 226.9(a) of Regulatlon Z, in.any trans-

S ,"a,ctlon in whlch & security interest is or will be retained or

) acquir ed in real property which is used or is expected to be

used as the principal residence of the customer, as provided

- in Section 226.9(c) of Regulation Z.

4. Failing, in any consumer credit tranqactwn or adver—
tisement, to make all disclosures requlred by Sections 226.6,

+ 9926.8, 226.9 and 226.10 of Regu]atlon Z, in the manner, form

and amount prescribed therein..

It 8 further ordered, That a eopy of this order to cease and
desist be delivered to aH present and future personnel of respond-
ents engaged in the consummation of any credit sale, and that
respondents secure from each such person a signed statement
acknowledging receipt of said order. :

It is furthm ordered, That 1espondents notify the Commissmn
at least thirty (30) da,ys prior to any proposed change in the
corporate respondent, such.as dissolution, assignment, or sale,
resultant in the emergence of a successor corporation, the crea-
tion, or dissolution of subsidiaries, or any other chfmoe in the

* corporation wluch may affect comphance ObhO“ItIODS arising out
- of ‘the order. ’
l tis further ordered, That the 1111t1al demsmn of the admmlstr ative

law

judge, as modified herem be, and it hereby 1s, adopted as the de-

cision of the Commission.
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1t is further ordered, That respondents herein shall, within sixty
(60)- days after service upon them of this order, file with the Com-
mission a report, in writing, sighed by such respondents, setting forth
in detail the manner and form of the_ir com-pliance with. the order to
cease and desist. ,
~ Chairman Klrkpatrlck concurrmg in the d1sposmon of thls
proceedmg - ' :

INTHEMATTEROF .

CAL ROOF WHOLESALE INC ET AL

CONSENT ORDER, ETC,, IN REGARD TO THE ALLEGED VIOLATION OF THE
. FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT

Docket 0—2307 O’omplmnt Oct 30, 1972—Dec¢szon, Oct 30 1972

Consent order reqmrmg a Portland Oregon, wholesaler and d1$tr1butor ,of
burld.mg matenalex, includir idential suhng products,»among ‘other
thmgs to cease mlsrepreséntmg any aspect ‘of contests’ or other promotional
schémes o1 ‘devices s mlsrepresentmg the quality or- propertles ofits ‘sid-
ihg' or ‘ether ~building products* ‘and . representing: that .its: products .are
guaranteed . unless - pertinent;, mformatlon -with ; respect ' thereto. is. clearly
and conspicuously dlsclosed

CoMPLAINT

-Pursuant to the:provisions of the Federal Trade Commission Act,
and by virtue of the authority vested in it by said Act, the Federal
Trade Commission, having reason to believe that Cal-Roof Whole-
sale, Inc., a corporation, and Morris Greenstein, individually and as
an officer of said corporation, hereinafter referred to as respondents;
have violated the provisions of said Act, and it appearing to the
Commission that a proceedino‘ by it in respect thereof would be in
the public interest, hereby issues its complalnt sta,tlng 1ts oharges in
that respect as follows :

Paraerarm 1. Respondent Cal -Roof Wholesale, Inc., is a corpora-
tion organized, existing and doing business under and by virtue of
the laws of the State of Oregon, with its principal office and place
of business located at 110 S.E. Taylor, Portland, Oregon.

- Respondent Morris Greenstein is an officer of the corporate respond-
ent. He formulates, directs and controls the acts and practices herein
described. His business address is the same as that of the corporate
respondent.
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" Pag. 2. Respondents are now and: for some time last past have been,
engaged in the wholesalé sale, ‘offering for sale, and distribution of
building materials, including resideritial siding products.”. - e

. Pag.'3. In the course and eonduct of their business as aforesaid,
respondents now cause, and for some time last past have caused, their
said products, when sold, to be shipped from their place of business
in the State of Oregon to purchasers thereof located in various other
States of the United States, and have operated branches outside of
the State of Oregon, and maintain; and at all times mentioned herein
have maintained, a substantial course of trade in said products in
commerce, as “commerce” is defined in-the Federal Trade Commission
Act.

Par. 4, To promote the sale of their building materials, respondents
have distributed and have caused to be distributed in commerce to
potential home siding purchasers, a substantial number of mailers
announcing a “17 Second Contest.” Two such mailers were so dis-
tributed. One advertised aluminum siding ‘and the other advertised
vinyl siding.. Each had a riumber printed on it and solicited the
entry of the recipient in a “contest.” The offered grand prize was a
free siding job, second prize was a color television set, and the third
prize was a clock or a mystery gift. The foregoing is‘hereinafter re-
ferred to as the “promotion.” Respondents have sent out or have
caused to have sent out 137,200 of the aluminum siding mailer and
approximately 135,000 of the vinyl siding mailer. ' '

After the mailers are received, the recipients may, and many do,
return the attached cards to the respondents, or their agents. The .
returned cards are then sent to siding contractors which have pur-
chased the promotion service from respondents and contractor sales-
men are sent to call on prospects who have returned the card to
attempt to sell them siding installation jobs and to deliver the appro-
priate prizes. | , - : - ’
~ In the said promotion mailers the following statements appear in
connection with the advertised siding: ’ :
) "'So new and different, it makes all other sidings_ obsolete

% * ’ * * * * ’ *
- Imagine, you never have to paint your house again
* * ' * . *® * * : *
.+« v Save by eliminating h-bus_e-painting and repairs over the next ten, twenty,
or thirty years. o . : ) . ’
* % ® * . % : *
’ Mail this card within 5 days o
# ¥ * * * * *
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Par. 5. By and through use of the said promotion, and through
the use of the aforementioned statements and assertions, respondents;
bave represented directly or by 1mphcat10n that: .

. 1. A true contest was being conducted in which the determmatlonj
of whether each. remplent of a promotion mailer was. entxtled to  Te;
ceive the third prize was based upon chance. ’

2. Promotion entrants could: not qualify to participate unless the
entry was mailed. within five days of receipt. ,

--8. The promotion Would be limited to a relatively short perlod of.;
time. :
-4 A grand prize of a regidential siding installation job and three
second prizes -of new color telev131on sets would be awarded in each,_
of the two promotions, ;. - . : :

5. Individuals entered. or partlclpatmg in the promotions were
afforded a reasonable opportumty to win the represented first and
second prizes.

6. ‘The advertised s1d1ng makes all other sidings obsolete

7. The advertised siding is “new” and “different.”

8. The advertised siding will eliminate the need for house pa,lntlng
. and siding repairs for as lonigas 30 years.

Pag. 6. In truth and in fact: : :

1. The determination of whether mailer recipients would receive
the third prize was not based on chance. Each and every promotion
mailer entitled the recipient to receive the third prize under the
criteria established in the mailer.

2. The mailing of promotion entry cards more than five days after
receipt of the mailer would not disqualify the entrant.

3. The promotion has not been limited to a relatively short period
of time, mailers having been sent into various areas intermittently
from June 1970 through July 1971, in the case of the aluminum siding
- mailer, and since August 1970 in the case of the vinyl siding maller

4. No residential siding installation jobs or color television sets were
won or awarded in either of the two promomons ‘

5. Individuals entered or part1c1pat1no~ in the promotions were not
afforded a reasonable opportunity to win the represented first and
second prizes. In the aluminum SIdmg promotlon, 137,200 mailers were
sent, out of which one was a first prize winner and three were second
prize winners. In the vinyl siding promotion, approx1mate1y 135,000
mailers were sent out, of which one was a first prize winner and three
were second prize winners.

6. The advertised siding did not obsolete all other sidings.

7. The advertised siding was not “new” and “different.”

'S
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8. The advertised sldmg will not eliminats’ the need for house
painting and siding repairs for aslong as 30 years.

PAR (e To promote the sale of then' bulldmg matena.ls, respondents’ :
potentml home siding purchasers, a substantlal number of mallers ad-
vertising steel house siding. The mailer invited the ree1p1ent to’ return’
a postage-paid card in order to obtain the free gift of a junior grand-
father clock at the time of a sales presentatlon The returned coupons- ‘
were ‘forwarded to siding coritractors'who had purchased the mailer
service. The coupons were utilized by the siding contractors for ob-
talmng leads for siding installation work. In the mailer, the followmg

- statements and representations, among others, were made:
This offer is limited to ten days only
e e T R R S e e e e g
- For your ‘security, vinylized:siding comes with a
transferable guarantee that you can depend on

* T ke * . . 'x ce el T
“Now say good-bye to house painting. :
'* TR *‘ . c * : . 0 : * - e g o .*

Immediate financing available. .
* * ‘ A * [ULEET SR TR R %

Basy terms to it your budget

* * * % * . * *
Act now, absolutely free * * * no obligation,
nothing to buy
* * * * * % *

This offer is limited to ten days only
* * * * * * *

Par. 8. By and through use of the aforementioned statements and
representations, respondents have represented directly or by implica-
tion:

1. That the offer to receive a junior grandfather clock by returmno-
the coupon is only available for 10 days from the date of receipt of the,
mailer.

2. That the advertised steel house siding is guarantoed in all respects
without conditions or limitations.

8. That houses to which the advertised steel house siding has been
applied will never need painting.

4. That immediate financing would be provided to all reclplents of.
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the mailer by the respondents or by some person or firm connected with
respondents.

5. That lower downpayments, longer perlods of repayment lower
interest charges, or lower monthly payments than those regularly
oﬁered would be available to each mailer recipient. '

6. That recipients of the mailer which returned the card would be
under no obligations with respect thereto.
 Par.9.In truthand in fact:

1. The offer in the mailer was not limited to ten days.

2. The siding guarantee is not unconditional, but is pro-rated and
contains other conditions to the obligations of the guarantor.

3. Apphcatlon of the advertised steel house S1d1ng will not ehmma.te
the need for house palntlng forever.

* 4. Financing of the house siding installation work is only avalla.ble
tothose who can qualify for credit extensions.

5. The downpayments are not lower, the interest charges are not less,
the periods of repayment are not longer, and the monthly payments
are not less than those that would be regularly and ordinarily available
to individuals obtaining financing for siding installation work. :
6. The mailer recipient who returns the coupon obligates himself
tolistentoa siding sales presentation.

Par. 10. In the course and conduct of their aforesaid business, and
at all times mentioned herein, respondents have been, and now are,
in substantial competition, in commerce, with corporations, firms and
individuals in the sale of siding materials and other products of the
same general kind and nature as that sold by respondents.

Par. 11. The use by the respondents of the aforesaid false, mislead-
ing and deceptive statements, representations and practices has had,
and now has, the capacity and tendency to mislead members of the
purchasing public into the erroneous and mistaken belief that said
statements and representations were and are true and into the purchase
of substantial quantities of respondents’ products by reason of said
erroneous and mistaken belief.

Par. 12. The aforesaid acts and practices of respondents, as herein
alleged, were and are all to the prejudice and injury of the public and
of respondents’ competitors and constituted, and now constitute, un-
fair methods of competition in commerce and unfair and deceptive
acts and practices in commerce in violation of Section 5 of the Federal
Trade Commission Act.
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. The Federal Trade Commission having 1n1t1ated an 1nvest1gat10n
of certain acts and practices of the respondents named in the caption
hereof, and the respondents having been furnished thereafter with a
copy of a draft of complaint which the Seattle Regional Office pro-
_posed to present to the Commission for its conSIderatmn and which, if
.issued by the Commission, would charge respondents W1th VIOIatlons
of Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commlssmn Act;and

The respondents and counsel for the Commlssmn having thereafter
exectitéd an agreeiment containing a consent order, an admission-by
the respondents of all the jurisdictional facts set forth in the aforesaid
draft of complaint, a statement that the signing of said agreement is
for settlement purposes only and does not constitute an admission by

- respondents that the law has been violated as alleged in such com-
plalnt and waivers and other provisions as required by the Commis-
sion’s rules; and : ’
~ The Oommlssmn having thereafter considered the matter and hav-
ing determined that it had reason to believe that the respondents have
v1olated ‘the-said Act, and. that complaint should" issue stating ‘its
charges in that respect, and havmg thereupon accepted the executed
consent agreement and placed such agreement on the public record
for a period of thirty (30) days, now in furthér conformity with the
procedure prescribed in Section 2.34(b) of its rules, the Commission
hexeby issues its complaint, makes the following ]urlsdlctlonal find-
ings, and enters the following order :

1. Respondent Cal-Roof Wholesale, Inc., is a corporation organized,
existing and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the
State of Oregon, with its office and principal place of business located
at 110 S.E. Taylor, Portland, Oregon.

Respondent Morris Greenstein is an officer of said corporation. He
formulates, directs and controls the policies, acts and practices of
said corporation, and his principal office and place of business is located
at the above stated address.

2. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the subject

~matter of this proceeding and of the respondents, and the proceeding
isin the public interest. _

ORDER

1% is ordered, That respondents Cal-Roof Wholesale, Inc., a corpora-
tion, and its officers, and Morris Greenstein, individually and as an
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foﬂicer of said corporatlon and- thelr suiceessors ‘and: assigns, and Te-

-spondents’-officers; agents, representatives; and employees, dlrectly or

through any corporation, subsidiary, division, or other device, in’con-

nection with the preparation, advertising, promotion, sale, distribution

‘or use of any contest, game or other promotional device, in ¢ommerce,

as “commerce” is defined in the Federal Trade Commlssmn Act, do

‘forthwith cease and demst, orally or in any other manner, dlrectly or
?1nd1rectly, from : ‘

1. Representmg that a contest or other smular promotional de-

~ vice is being conducted: in Whlch the determination of whether

' a participant is a winner or Joser is based on’chance, when such

" is‘not the fact; or- mlsrepresentlng in any manner any aspéct of

any contest or other promotional scheme or device.

~ 9. Representing that an offer to a potentlal individual “partici-

*- pant of an opportunity to participate in any promotlonal scheme

_or réceive a free gift is limited to a certain specific period of time,
" ‘excepting such disclosures as are- Pequlred in Paragraph 3 of this
" section of this order.

3. Failing to accurately and truthfully dlsclose on all materials
distr 1buted to the public the date that any contest; game, or other
promotional device is initiated and the date it will end.

4, Failing to award and distribute all prizes of the value and
type represented.

5. Engaging in the preparation, promotion, sale, distribution,
or use of any contest, game, or other promotional device unless the
following are disclosed clearly and conspicuously in all advertis-
ing and promotional material concerning said devices:

(a) The total number of prizes to be awarded ;

(b) The exact nature of the prizes, the applommate retail
value of each prize, and the number of each separate type
of prize;

(¢) The odds of winning each prize;

(d) The geographical area or states in Whlcll any such
device is used.

It is further ordered, That respondents and their successors and as-
signs, and respondents’ officers, agents, representatives, and employees,
directly or through any corporation, subsidiary, division or other
device, in connection with the offering for sale, sale or distribution
of building’ or siding materials, or any other similar products in
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commerce, as “commerce” is defined in the Federal Trade Commission
Act,.do forthwith cease and desist, orally or in any other manner,
directly or indirectly, from :

1. Representing .that any siding or other bu1ldmg product_ 7

renders all other similar products obsolete; or otherwise mlsrep-
resenting siding or other building products.

2.  Representing that any siding or other bmldmg product is
different when such product is not different and representing that
any such product is new more than six months after initial intro-

- duction to the public, exclusive of any test marketing periods.

3. Representing that any siding or other building product will
eliminate. the need for house painting and siding repairs for as
long as 30 years or forever.

4. Representing, directly or by 1mphcat1on, that any of re-
spondents’ products are guaranteed unless the nature and extent.
of the guarantee, the identity of the guarantor, and the manner
in which the guarantor will perform thereunder are clearly and
conspicuously disclosed.

5. Representmg that financing is available Wlthout dlsclosmg
that credit is only available on approval of credit and without
disclosing the source of such financing. '

6. Representing that lenient credit terms are avallable, in-
cluding, but not limited to use of the term “easy terms.”

7. Representing generally that a mailer recipient or participant
'in any promotional device may receive a free gift or participate
in a promotion without obligation or condition in connection
with a promotion where a salesman may contact the recipient
or participant.

It is further ordered, That the respondent corporation shall forth-
with distribute a copy of this order to each of its operating divisions.
It is further ordered, That respondents deliver a copy of this order
to cease and desist to all present and future personnel of respondents
engaged in the offering for sale or sale of any product or in any aspect
of preparation, creation, or placing of advertising, and that re-
spondents secure a signed statement acknowledging receipt of said
order from each such person.

It is further ordered, That respondents notify the Commission at
least thirty (30) days prior to any proposed change in the corporate
respondent such as dissolution, assignment or sale resulting in the

'S
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emergence of a successor corporation, the creation or dissolution of
subsidiaries or any other change in the corporation. which may affect -
compliance obligations arising out of the order. - e
1t is further ordered, That the respondents herein shall, within sixty
(60) days after service upon them of this order, file with the Commis-
sion a report, in writing, setting forth in detail the manner and form

in which they have complied with this order.

In THE MATTER OF
SUGAR INFORMATION, INC., ET AL.

CONSENT ORDER, ETC., IN REGARD TO THE ALLEGED VIOLATION OF THE
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT

Docket C-2308. Omplamt, Now. 1, 1972—Decision, Nov. 1, 1972

Consent order requiring two sugar industry trade associations of New York
City, among other things to cease making false and unsubstantiated weight
reduction claims for refined sugar and misrepresenting its nutritional value

- in weight-reduction dieting. Respondents are further -required to run
full-page corrective ads in various publications listed in the order.

COMPLAINT

Pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Trade Commission Act,
and by virtue of the authority vested in it by said Act, the Federal
Trade Commission, having reason to believe that Sugar Information,
Inc., Sugar Association, Inc., and Leo Burnett Company, Inc., corpo-
rations, hereinafter referred to as respondents, have violated the
provisions of said Act, and it appearing to the Commission that a
proceeding by it in respect thereof would be in the public interest,
hereby issues its complaint stating its charges in that respect as
follows:
~ Paracrapa 1. Respondents Sugar Information, Inc., and Sugar

Association, Ine., are trade associations organized, existing and doing
business as corporations under and by virtue of the laws of the State
of New York, with their principal office and place of business located
at 254 West 31st Street, New York, New York. Respondents Sugar
Information, Inc., and Sugar Association, Inc., were organized and
are maintained for the purpose of promoting, fostering and advancing
the interests of their members who consist of firms engaged in busi-
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Tiesses relatmg to: the’sugar mdustry, mchidmg but not l'mlted to
‘growets, refiners, and processors. . . & DEPIFRITR
Par. 2. Respondent Leo Burnett Company, Inc ‘isa corporatlon
‘orgamzed ‘éxisting and doing business under and'by: v1rbue of the laws
‘of the State of Delawa,re, with its office and prlnmpal place of busmess
Jocated at Prudential Plaza, Chlcago, Tlinois. > 07 ,
Pagr. 3. Respondents-Sugar: Association, Inc., and: Sugam Informa~
tion, Inc., have been and now are engaged in a wide range of activities
of mutual interest to their members 1nclud1ng but not limited to the
dissemination, publishing, and- distribution of advertisements and
promotional material concerning the uses, purposes, utility, character-
istics and effects ‘of: sugar, whlch ‘comes: within the classification of
“food,” as said term is defined in the Federal Trade Commission Act.
Par. 4. Respondent. Leo Burnett Company, Inc., is now, and for
some time last past has been, an advertising agency of Stugar Associ-
ation, Inc., and Sugar Information; Ine., and: niow and for-some time
last, past, has prepared and placed. for publication and has caused
the dlssemmatlon of advertising material, including’ but ot Timited
to the advertising. refen-ed to. herein, to promote the. sale’ of .sugar,
and sproducts containing sugar, -which come within the-classifieation
of “food;” as said term is definéd:in the Federal Trade’ Commission
Act. -
Par. 5. In the course and conduct of their said businesses, re-
spondents have disseminated; and caused the dissemination of certain
advertisements concerning sugar -and products containing sugar
by the United States mails and by various means in commerce, as
“commerce” is defined in the Federal Trade Commission Act, includ-
ing but not limited to, advertisements inserted in magazines and other
advertising media, for the purpose of inducing and which were likely
to induce, directly or indirectly, the purchase of said products; and
have disseminated, and caused the dissemination of, advertisements
concerning said products by various means, including but not limited
to the aforesaid media, for the purpose of inducing and which were
likely to induce, directly or indirectly, the purchase of said products
in commerce as “commerce” is defined in the I‘ederal Trade Commis-
sion Act. : :
Par. 6. Typical of the statements and replesentatlons in. sald ad—
vertisements, disseminated as afor esald but not all mcluswe thereof,
are the following : g :
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